
Two Rivers City Hall
1717 East Park Street
Two Rivers, WI 54241
(920) 793-5532
www.two-rivers.org

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 
Councilmembers: Mark Bittner, Jeff Dahlke, Tracey Koach, Bill LeClair, Darla LeClair, Jay Remiker,
Bonnie Shimulunas, Adam Wachowski

4. CONSIDERATION OF ANY COUNCIL MEMBER REQUESTS TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS
MEETING FROM A REMOTE LOCATION

5. PUBLIC HEARING

6. INPUT FROM THE PUBLIC

7. COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS
Letters and other communications from citizens

8. COUNCIL REPORTS FROM BOARDS/COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES

9. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 
A. INVITED GUESTS

1. Introduction and Swearing in New Full-Time Police Officer Anthony Timberlake 
2. Diane Johnson, Superintendent of Two Rivers School District to Provide Update on School

District Facilities Study
3. Wine Not LLC Announcement and Presentation Regarding Planned Downtown

Redevelopment Project at Former Wells Fargo Bank Property and Request for City
Application for WEDC Community Development Incentive (CDI) Grant to Assist the Project

 
Resolution Authorizing Application for WEDC CDI Grant for $250,000 to Assist Downtown
Redevelopment Project at the Former Wells Fargo Bank Property, 1718 West Park Street
Recommended Action:
Motion to waive reading and adopt the resolution
 

  
CITY OF TWO RIVERS

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR AGENDA
Monday, October 4, 2021 – 6:00 PM 

Council Chambers - City Hall 
Regular Meeting

NOTICE: Arrangements for Addressing the City Council by Telephone, During Public Hearings or
Input from the Public can be made by Contacting the City Manager's Office at 920-793-5532 or
City Clerk's Office at 920-793-5526 by 4:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

October 4, 2021 City Council Regular
 

1



B. STATUS UPDATE/REPORTS
1. 25th and Madison Streets Reconstruction Projects
2. Central Park West 365 Project--Joint Meeting of City Council and Central Park West 365

Planning Committee, Thursday, October 7, 6:00 PM
3. Fall Leaf Pickup Schedule Beginning Monday, October 18, 2021, Monday East Side:

Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday North Side and Friday South Side
4. Cemetery Clean-up of Summer Decorations by October 15
5. Police K-9 Update, Including Breakfast in the Park Fundraiser, Saturday, October 16
6. Update on Humane Society Contract and Stray Animals
7. Manitowoc-Two Rivers Lions Club Applefest, Saturday, October 9
8. Electronics Drive, Two Rivers High School Octagon Club, Saturaday, October 15
9. Public Power Week, October 3-9, 2021

10. Marine Sanctuary Wisconsin Maritime Museum, Saturday, October 9
11. Other

 
C. INTERGOVERNMENTAL/LEGISLATIVE UPDATE

1. Tourism Services Agreement with City of Manitowoc and Manitowoc Area Visitor and
Convention Bureau

2. Other

10. CONSENT AGENDA

 A. Presentation of Minutes
1. Regular City Council - September 20, 2021
2. Work Session City Council - September 27, 2021

Recommended Action:
Motion to waive reading and adopt the minutes

 B. Reports:
      1. Minutes of Meetings

a. Environmental Advisory Board, September 21, 2021
b. Joint Review Board, September 28, 2021
c. Personnel & Finance Committee, September 29, 2021

2. Finance Reports August
a. Debt Service
b. General Fund
c. Lester Library
d. Utilities Report

Recommended Action:
Motion to receive and file

11. CITY COUNCIL - FORMAL ITEMS

 A. Proclamation Naming October 4-11 as Mental Illness Awareness Week

 

 

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION FOR CONSENT AGENDA
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda witht he various actions recommended

 

October 4, 2021 City Council Regular
 

2



Recommended Action:
Motion to read and adopt the proclamation

 B. Resolution Recognizing Curt Andrews for His Service on the City Council, 2018-2021
Recommended Action:
Motion to read and adopt the resolution

 C. Resolution to Amend Capital 2021 Tax Incremental District No. 8 Budget in Order to Proceed
with Design Work for Reconstruction of Washington Park Tennis Courts as Tennis and
Pickleball Courts and to Accept Donation of $4,500 for Such Design Services
Recommended Action:
Motion to waive reading and adopt the resolution

 D. Introduction of Redistricting Ordinance
Recommended Action:
Motion to set Public Hearing for October 18, 2021 at 6:00 PM

 E. Consider Methodology for Selection of Appointee to Fill Vacancy on City Council
Recommended Action:
Council discretion

 F. Resolution Implementing Municipal-Wide Energy Management Policy
Recommended Action:
Motion to waive reading and adopt the resolution

 G. Contract for the Design of the Community Development Block Grant- COVID (CDBG-CV)
Funded Senior Center Improvements
Recommended Action:
Motion to approve a contract for the design of the Community Development Block Grant-
COVID (CDBG-CV) funded Senior Center Improvements  

 H. Resolution Authorizing Purchase of Election Equipment Upgrades with the Intent to
Reimburse from 2022 Capital Borrowing
Recommended Action:
Motion to waive reading and adopt the resolution

12. FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
1. Personnel and Finance Committee Meeting-Budget Review, October 6, 2021, 6:00 PM
2. City Council Regular Meeting, Monday, October 20, 2021, 6:00 PM
3. City Council Work Session, Monday, October 25, 2021, 6:00 PM

13. CLOSED SESSION 
The City Council reserves the right to enter into Closed Session, per Wisc. Stats 19.85(1)(e)
deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investment of public funds, or
conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reason require a
closed session

Discuss Possible City Assistance to Economic Development Projects
Review Proposed TID14 Development Agreement With Sleger Holdings, LLC
Discuss Redevelopment of City-Owned Paragon Property

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

October 4, 2021 City Council Regular
 

3



14. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
To consider possible actions in follow-up to closed session discussions

15. ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the meeting and adjourn

 

 

Please note, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs to disabled individuals through
appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request this service, please contact the Office of the City
Manager by calling 793-5532.

It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at
the above stated meeting to gather information; no other action will be taken by any governmental body at the above-
stated meeting other than the governmental body specifically referred to above in this notice.

October 4, 2021 City Council Regular
 

4



RESOLUTION

Authorizing Application for a Community Development Investment Grant 

Through the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation to Support 

Redevelopment of Former Wells Fargo Building at 1718 West Park Street

WHEREAS, the City of Two Rivers is aware of funding opportunities available 

through the Community Development Investment (CDI) Grant Program administered 

by the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation (WEDC); and 

WHEREAS, the CDI Grant Program’s primary focus is to provide incentives for 

catalytic downtown redevelopment projects in communities across Wisconsin; and,

WHEREAS, the vacant former Wells Fargo building is located in the heart of our 

City's downtown Main Street District and a proposed redevelopment of this property has 

the potential to serve as a catalyst for other redevelopment in the Main Street corridor 

and surrounding areas; and

WHEREAS, such redevelopment is consistent with the City's Comprehensive Plan, 

with the City's goal of redeveloping idle sites (this property has been vacant since 2018), 

and with the City’s goal of promoting redevelopment in the central business district; and

WHEREAS, the City of Two Rivers recognizes that the CDI grant reimburses 

expenses incurred and requires a minimum dollar for dollar match, which will be well 

exceeded by the total private investment of $1,500,000 that the developers, Wine 

Not, LLC estimate will be required to redevelop this major downtown property;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Two Rivers

authorizes the submission of an application to the WEDC CDI Grant program to support 

the redevelopment project of former Wells Fargo building.

Approved this 4th day of October, 2021.   

____________________________

Council Member

____________________________

Gregory E. Buckley, City Manager 5



CITY OF TWO RIVERS
COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS

REGULAR MEETING
SEPTEMBER 20, 2021 – 6:00 PM

Council Chambers – City Hall
MINUTES

1) CALL TO ORDER by Council President Wachowski at 6:00 p.m.

2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3) ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK

Attendee Name Title Status
Adam Wachowski President Present
Bill LeClair Councilmember Present
Bonnie Shimulunas Councilmember Present
Darla LeClair Councilmember Present
Jeff Dahlke Councilmember Present
Jay Remiker Councilmember Present
Tracey Koach Councilmember Present
Mark Bittner Councilmember Present

Also present were: Ross Blaha, Water Utility Director; Jeff Dawson, Library Director; Brian 
Dellemann, Electric Utility Director; Steve Denzien, Fire Chief; Brian Kohlmeier, Police 
Chief; Jim McDonald, Rick Powell, IS Supervisor; Public Works Director; Elizabeth Runge, 
Community Development Director/City Planner; Terri Vosters, Parks & Recreation 
Director; Greg Buckley, City Manager; and Jack Bruce, City Attorney.

4) CONSIDERATION OF ANY COUNCIL MEMBER REQUESTS TO 
PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING FROM A REMOTE LOCATION

Motion to approve remote participation in this meeting by Councilmember B. LeClair.

RESULT: APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Jeff Dahlke
SECONDER: Tracey Koach
AYES:  Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Darla LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, 

Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner

5) INPUT FROM THE PUBLIC

Kay Koach – 2411 34th Street, Two Rivers – Ms. Koach stated that she opposes the City 
of Two Rivers becoming a constitutional sanctuary city and requested that 
Councilmembers do their homework and make a very educated decision on this topic.

6



September 20, 2021 2 City Council Minutes

Bob DesJarlais, Mishicot Town Board Member – 17624 Kasmer Road, Mishicot – Mr. 
DesJarlais spoke in favor of a constitutional sanctuary and urged the Council to support a 
resolution making the City of Two Rivers a constitutional sanctuary city.

Forest Lafave – 2112 Lincoln Street, Two Rivers – Ms. Lafave spoke in favor of a 
constitutional sanctuary and urged the Council to support a resolution making the City of 
Two Rivers a constitutional sanctuary city.

Julie Hart – 3404 Memorial Drive, Two Rivers - Ms. Hart spoke in favor of a constitutional 
sanctuary and urged the Council to support a resolution making the City of Two Rivers a 
constitutional sanctuary city.

Wayne Bolle – 7903 Naidl Road, Whitelaw – Mr. Bolle shared statistics regarding the 
United States’ high percentage of COVID deaths in relation to its percentage of the 
worldwide population.

Representative Shae Sortwell – 13219 County Road Q, Two Rivers – Mr. Sortwell spoke 
in favor of a constitutional sanctuary and urged the Council to support a resolution making 
the City of Two Rivers a constitutional sanctuary city.

6) COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

Letters and other communications from citizens

Councilmember Shimulunas reported that she believes there is a stray animal problem in 
the City. She stated that a local resident recently told her that the Lakeshore Humane 
Society was unable to take a stray cat from Two Rivers because their shelter is full. Mr. 
Buckley indicated that a report will be given at a future meeting regarding the City’s 
contract with the Lakeshore Humane Society, and that organization’s obligations to take 
stray animals from the cities of Two Rivers and Manitowoc.

Councilmember Dahlke reported that he has received additional complaints about golf 
carts and children not being appropriately restrained when riding as passengers on golf 
carts.

7) COUNCIL REPORTS FROM BOARDS/COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES

A. Update on Status of Tourism Services Agreement with Manitowoc Room Tax 
Commission and Manitowoc Area Visitor and Convention Bureau
Councilmember Bittner reported on the City of Manitowoc Room Tax Commission’s 
decision to terminate their agreement with the Manitowoc Area Visitor Convention 
Bureau and sell the building that houses the Manitowoc Area Visitor Convention 
Bureau. Following their notification to the MAVCB and the City of Two Rivers, the City 
of Manitowoc Room Tax Commission requested a joint meeting with the City of Two 
Rivers Room Tax Commission which was declined by unanimous vote of the Two 
Rivers Room Tax Commission. 

Mr. Buckley further reported that there are statutory requirements for contributing room 
tax dollars to area tourism organizations and indicated that the Two Rivers Room Tax 
Commission will be looking into alternative options for local tourism promotion going 

7



September 20, 2021 3 City Council Minutes

forward. Both he and Mr. Bittner expressed their disappointment with this decision by 
Manitowoc’s Room Tax Commission.

8) CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

A. INVITED GUESTS 
None.

B. STATUS UPDATE/REPORTS
1. 24th Street Reconstruction Project

Mr. Buckley reported that the reconstruction project on 24th Street is complete. 
The City is currently seeking price quotes for street tree planting, which will be 
discussed with the Public Works Committee on October 6th.

2. 25th and Madison Street Reconstruction Project
Mr. Buckley reported that the reconstruction project on 25th Street is complete.

The utility work on Madison Street is expected to be completed by September 
22nd with grading and paving operations expected to begin September 27th and 
extending well into October.

3. Central Park West 365 Project
Mr. Buckley reported that the Central Park West 365 Planning Committee met 
on September 15th to continue to refine both the design and project estimates, 
including addressing the size and configuration of the “audience” area in front 
of the bandstand, revisiting the proposed elimination of West Park Street in 
front of the Community House, location and design of the concession/restroom 
building, and size and location of the splash pad/ice rink.

The Committee has requested a special joint meeting with the City Council on 
Thursday, September 30th to review design issues, especially the proposed 
use of West Park Street in front of the Community House. Additionally, the 
Committee has a meeting scheduled for Thursday, October 21st.

Mr. Buckley reported that the West Foundation approved a $300,000 grant in 
support of the Central Park West 365 Project at its September meeting. $7,500 
in private donations have also been received so far. The City Manager will 
recommend appointments to a fundraising committee at the September 27th

Council Work Session meeting.

4. Recent Events
Mr. Buckley reported that vendors were slightly down from normal years, but 
the vendors and attendees had a great day at Ethnic Fest sponsored by Two 
Rivers Main Street in downtown Two Rivers on Saturday, September 18th. 

Also, the Two Rivers Historical Society had a successful “Chairs for Repairs” 
event in conjunction with Ethnic Fest. 55 custom-decorated chairs were offered 
through a silent auction that raised $4,500.

5. Upcoming Events

8



September 20, 2021 4 City Council Minutes

Mr. Buckley reported that the Fall Recycling Event will take place at Two Rivers 
Water and Light on Tuesday, September 21st from 7:30 am to 5:00 pm.

Also, the Two Rivers Senior Center is having an Open House Fundraiser on 
Thursday, September 23rd from 4:00 to 6:00 pm/

6. ExploreTwoRivers.com
Mr. Buckley reminded viewers that the most up-to-date source of information 
for events in the City of Two Rivers is www.exploretworivers.com.

7. Two Rivers’ Frank Lloyd Wright House, Still Bend, Featured on Netflix
Mr. Buckley reported that Still Bend, the Frank Lloyd Wright design home on 
the East Twin River in Two Rivers, is featured on the Season 2 premiere of 
“The World’s Most Amazing Vacation Rentals” on Netflix.

8. Other
Mr. Buckley reminded Councilmembers that they are invited to attend the 
Commissioning Event for Point Beach Solar Energy Center on Thursday, 
September 23rd at 10:00 am.

Mr. Buckley reported that event registration is open for Hamilton Wood Type 
and Printing Museum’s Annual Wayzgoose Conference on November 5th and 
6th. Scholarships are available to local residents and students.

Mr. Buckley reviewed Google Analytics of the City’s website and 
exploretworivers.com for the past 7 days and reviewed the most visited 
webpages.

C. LEGISLATIVE/INTERGOVERNMENTAL
None.

9) CONSENT AGENDA

A. Presentation of Minutes
1. Regular City Council – September 7, 2021

Recommended Action:
Motion to waive reading and adopt the minutes

B. Reports
1. Minutes of Meetings:

a. Committee on Aging, June 7, 2021
b. Plan Commission, September 13, 2021
c. Library Board, August 10, 2021
d. Public Works Committee, August 4, 2021
e. Public Works Committee, September 1, 2021
f. Public Utilities Committee, August 3, 2021
g. Public Utilities Committee, August 31, 2021
h. Personnel & Finance Committee, September 9, 2021
i. Room Tax Commission, September 14, 2021

9



September 20, 2021 5 City Council Minutes

j. Central Park West 365 Planning Committee, September 15, 2021
2. Department Reports:

a. City Clerk
b. Community Development
c. Electric
d. Inspections
e. Library
f. Parks & Recreation
g. Police
h. Public Works
i. Safety
j. Water

Recommended Action:
Motion to receive and file

C. Applications and Petitions
1. Application for Temporary Class “B” License

a. Two Rivers Rotary Club, Rotary Road Rally, October 9, 2021, 4:00-
10:00 pm, Woodland Dunes Event Center, 3000 Hawthorne Avenue

2. Application for Special Event Beer Garden Permit
a. Tapped on the Lakeshore, CASA Fundraiser, October 3, 2021, 12:00-

4:00 pm, 3114 Memorial Drive

Recommended Action:
Motion to approve the applications and authorize issuance of the licenses

RECOMMENDED ACTION FOR CONSENT AGENDA
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda with the various actions recommended

RESULT: APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Jay Remiker
SECONDER: Mark Bittner
AYES:  Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Darla LeClair, Jeff Dahlke,

Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner

10) CITY COUNCIL - FORMAL ITEMS

A. Ordinance to amend Municipal Code Section 6-2-8, entitled “Temporary operator’s 
license” to match Wis. Stats. 125.17(4)(b) to allow up to 2 Temporary Operator 
Licenses per person per calendar year

Recommended Action:
Motion to waive reading and adopt the ordinance

10



September 20, 2021 6 City Council Minutes

RESULT: APPROVED BY ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Jeff Dahlke
SECONDER: Bonnie Shimulunas
AYES:  Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Darla LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, 

Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner

B. Ordinance Amending Section 6-11-10(b) of City Ordinances, Pertaining to 
Membership Structure for the City’s Room Tax Commission

Recommended Action:
Motion to waive reading and adopt the ordinance

Mr. Buckley presented background information and reviewed the ordinance which 
would allow the Council president to designate someone else to serve on the 
Room Tax Commission in his/her place.

RESULT: NO VOTE, MOTION AMENDED
MOVER: Darla LeClair
SECONDER: Mark Bittner

Motion amended to waive the reading and adopt the ordinance removing the 
language requiring that the representative from the Wisconsin hotel and 
motel industry represent a property having 10 or more lodging rooms.

RESULT: APPROVED BY ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Darla LeClair
SECONDER: Mark Bittner
AYES:  Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Darla LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, 

Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner

C. State/Municipal Financial Agreement providing for 90 Percent Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation Funding for Design and Construction Costs for 
Updating of Traffic and Pedestrian Signals at the Washington/22nd Street 
Intersection (Estimated $89,000 Project Cost; $80,100 Federal Funding, Balance 
Local Funding --to be Completed by December 1, 2023)

Recommended Action:
Motion to Authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement on behalf of the City

11



September 20, 2021 7 City Council Minutes

RESULT: APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Jeff Dahlke
SECONDER: Bonnie Shimulunas
AYES:  Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Darla LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, 

Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner

D. State/Municipal Financial Agreement providing for 90 Percent Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation Funding for Design and Construction Costs for 
Updating of Traffic and Pedestrian Signals on Washington Street at the 
Intersections at 16th, 17th and 18th Streets (Estimated $224,000 Project Cost; 
$201,600 Federal Funding, Balance Local Funding--to be Completed by 
December 1, 2025)

Recommended Action:
Motion to Authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement on behalf of the City

RESULT: APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Tracey Koach
SECONDER: Bonnie Shimulunas
AYES:  Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Darla LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, 

Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner

E. Advisory Recreation Board Recommendations Regarding Naming of Parks

Recommended Action:
Motion to Re-Name Harbor Park "Coast Guard Park" and Re-Name the Harbor 
Dock Area, or Lot F, "Harbor View Park"

RESULT: APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Darla LeClair
SECONDER: Bill LeClair
AYES:  Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Darla LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, 

Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner

F. Discussion of Possible Action to Declare the City of Two Rivers a "Constitutional 
Sanctuary," with Possible Direction to City Staff to Prepare a Resolution for Future 
City Action (Requested by Council President, Based on Request from a Council 
Member)

Recommended Action:
Council Discretion

Councilmember Shimulunas asked for clarification on what a constitutional 
sanctuary is.

12



September 20, 2021 8 City Council Minutes

Councilmember D. LeClair thanked members of the public for coming to the 
meeting and voicing their opinions during public input. She indicated that 
implementing a constitutional sanctuary is an extremely divisive issue and 
Councilmembers need to be sure they are actively representing their 
constituents. 

Motion to table the topic until there is a petition signed by at least 20% of 
the voting public indicating their interest in a constitutional sanctuary.

RESULT: WITHDRAWN – No original motion to table
MOVER: Darla LeClair
SECONDER: Mark Bittner

Discussion continued and Councilmember Bittner indicated that he is not in 
support of a constitutional sanctuary but would support Councilmember D. 
LeClair’s suggestion of giving the topic further consideration if the Council is 
presented with a petition showing significant community support.

City Manager Buckley questioned what expectations adoption of a constitutional 
sanctuary might create among the public. Would such a designation imply that the 
local city council members act as arbitrators of what federal or state laws will or 
will not be enforced locally? He stated that the U.S. Constitution establishes the 
three branches of government and identifies their respective roles, with the courts 
responsible for ruling on the constitutionality of laws that are challenged.

Council consulted with City Attorney Bruce for petition requirements that apply in 
the case of direct legislation for charter ordinances, like that required for a change 
from City Manager/Council form of government to Mayor/Council form of 
government, as compared to the signature requirements that had been proposed 
in Councilmember D. LeClair’s motion. After consulting the statutes, Attorney 
Bruce said that the requirement for petitions associated with such direct legislation 
was 15 percent of the number of people who voted in the last gubernatorial 
election.

Motion to direct staff to not spend any time on drafting a resolution regarding 
a constitutional sanctuary until staff hears back from Council, with such 
direction from City Council to be predicated on the Council’s receipt of a 
petition signed by at least 15% of the current 6,253 registered voters in the 
City, with the names on the petition being subject to verification by the City 
Clerk.

RESULT: APPROVED BY ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Darla LeClair
SECONDER: Mark Bittner
AYES:  Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Darla LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, 

Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner

G. Consideration of Options for Filling Council Vacancy

13



September 20, 2021 9 City Council Minutes

Recommended Action:
Council Discretion

City Attorney Bruce presented options the Council can pursue for filling the 
vacancy created by the recent resignation of Curt Andrews. Options for filling the 
vacancy include appointing a successor to service for the residue of the unexpired 
term or until a special election is held, as ordered by the Common Council under 
Wis. Stats. 8.50, or the office can remain vacant until an election is held.

Motion to direct staff to present a template for interested candidates to 
express their interest in filling the vacant Council seat at the September 
Work Session meeting and appoint an interested candidate to the vacant 
Council seat following the review of applications until a special election is 
held.

RESULT: NO VOTE – Motion Amended
MOVER: Tracey Koach
SECONDER: Mark Bittner

Motion amended to direct staff to announce the Council vacancy and 
collect application materials from interested candidates with a deadline of 
12:00 pm on Friday, October 15th. Applications will then be reviewed at the 
October 18th Council meeting to appoint an interested candidate to the 
vacant Council seat following the review of applications until a special 
election is held.

RESULT: APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Tracey Koach
SECONDER: Mark Bittner
AYES:  Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Darla LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, 

Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner

H. Election of City Council Vice President (Paper Ballot)

Nominations were sought for the position of City Council Vice President. Darla 
LeClair was nominated by Tracey Koach and accepted the nomination. Jay 
Remiker was nominated by Council President Adam Wachowski and accepted the 
nomination. There were no other nominations. Councilmembers voted for their 
preferred candidate via paper ballot with Bill LeClair (attending the meeting 
remotely) submitting his vote via text message to the City Clerk. The vote resulted 
in a tie, 4 votes each.

In an effort to eliminate the possibility of another tie vote, Jeff Dahlke nominated 
Mark Bittner who declined the nomination.

14



September 20, 2021 10 City Council Minutes

Council agreed to settle the tie with a coin flip. “Heads” signifying Darla LeClair 
and “tails” signifying Jay Remiker. City Manager Buckley flipped the coin and City 
Attorney Bruce confirmed a result of “heads” and Darla LeClair was appointed City 
Council Vice President.

I. Announcement of Council President’s Appointment of Council Member to the 
Personnel and Finance Committee

Council President Wachowski appointed Jeff Dahlke to the Personnel and Finance 
Committee.

J. Election of Council Members to Committees replacing Curt Andrews

Councilmember D. LeClair volunteered to serve on the Community Development 
Authority and Business and Industrial Development Committee. 

The Council chose to carry the vacancy on the Branding and Marketing Committee 
until a new member is appointed to Council.

K. Consideration of Scheduling Special Joint meeting with Central Park West 365 
Planning Committee, as requested by the Committee

Recommended Action:
Motion to set meeting for 6:00 pm on Thursday, September 30, 2021

RESULT: APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Bill LeClair
SECONDER: Tracey Koach
AYES:  Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Darla LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, 

Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner

11) FOR INFORMATION ONLY

A. City Council Work Session, Monday, September 27, 2021, 6:00 pm
B.  Personnel & Finance Budget Review Meeting, Wednesday, September 29, 2021, 6:00 

pm
C.  City Council Regular Meeting, Monday, October 4, 2021, 6:00 pm
D.  Personnel & Finance Budget Review Meeting, Wednesday, October 6, 2021, 6:00 pm

12) CLOSED SESSION

Motion to enter into closed session at 8:56 pm per Wisc. Stats. 19.85(1)(e) deliberating or 
negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investment of public funds, or 
conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons 
require a closed session:

- Discuss Possible City Assistance to Economic Development Projects
- Discuss Purchase of Former Hamilton Property
- Discuss Possible Sale of City-Owned Paragon Property

15



September 20, 2021 11 City Council Minutes

RESULT: APPROVED WITH ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Tracey Koach
SECONDER: Bonnie Shimulunas
AYES:  Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Darla LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, 

Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner

13) RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION

Motion to reconvene in open session at 9:45 pm to consider possible actions in follow-up 
to closed session discussions.

RESULT: APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Mark Bittner
SECONDER: Tracey Koach
AYES:  Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Darla LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, 

Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner

14) ADJOURNMENT

Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes and adjourn at 9:45 pm.

RESULT: APPROVED BY VOICE VOTE [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Jay Remiker
SECONDER: Darla LeClair
AYES:  Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Darla LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, 

Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner

Jamie Jackson
City Clerk

16



 

CITY OF TWO RIVERS 

COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 
WORK SESSION  

Monday, September 27, 2021 – 6:00 PM 
Council Chambers – City Hall 

MINUTES 

 
 

1. Call to Order by President Adam Wachowski at 6:00 PM. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Roll Call 
Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Adam Wachowski President Present  
Bill LeClair Councilmember Present  
Bonnie Shimulunas Councilmember Present  
Darla LeClair Councilmember Present  
Jeff Dahlke Councilmember Present  
Jay Remiker Councilmember Present  
Tracey Koach Councilmember Present  
Mark Bittner Councilmember Present  

 

Also present were Dave Buss, Finance Director; Brian Dellemann, Electric Utility Director; 
Ethan Jones, Recreation Supervisor; Lisa Kuehn, Deputy City Clerk/Assistant to the City 
Manager; Jim McDonald, Public Works Director; Elizabeth Runge, Community Development 
Director/Planner; and Greg Buckley, City Manager. 
 

4. Action Items 
A. Resolution Approving the Project Plan for Tax Incremental District No.16 to Support the 

Development of the Former Eggers Industries Site on East River Street to Eliminate Blight 
and Increase the City's Tax Base 
 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to waive reading and adopt the resolution 
 

RESULT: APPROVED WITH ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Darla LeClair, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Bill LeClair, Councilmember 
AYES: Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Darla LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, 

Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner 
NAYS: None 

 
B. Resolution Creating Tax Incremental District No. 16 to Support Redevelopment of the 

Former Eggers Industries Site on East River Street 
 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to waive reading and adopt the resolution 

 

17



September 27, 2021 2 City Council Minutes 

RESULT: APPROVED WITH ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Bonnie Shimulunas, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Tracey Koach, Councilmember 
AYES: Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Darla LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, 

Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner 
NAYS: None 

 
C. Application for Class "B" Beer/"Class B" Liquor License for the period of October 1, 2021 

to June 30, 2022 for Tannery Club LLC, 4317 Tannery Road, dba Lonz's Tannery Club, 
Megan Neuman-Agent (currently issued to Steven Lonzo) 
 
Recommend Action:   
Motion to approve the applications and authorize issuance of the licenses 
 

RESULT: APPROVED WITH VOICE VOTE [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Jay Remiker, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Jeff Dahlke, Councilmember 
AYES: Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Curt Andrews, Darla 

LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner 
NAYS: None 

 

D. Application for Beer Garden Permit for the period of October 1, 2021 to June 30, 
2022 for Tannery Club LLC, 4317 Tannery Road, dba Lonz's Tannery Club (currently 
issued to Steven Lonzo) 
 
Recommend Action:   
Motion to approve the applications and authorize issuance of the licenses 
 

RESULT: APPROVED WITH VOICE VOTE [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Jeff Dahlke, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Jay Remiker, Councilmember 
AYES: Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Curt Andrews, Darla 

LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner 
NAYS: None 

 

5. Report from City Clerk and Deputy City Clerk Regarding County Redistricting 
A. Review Need to Approve Ordinance by October 18, 2021 Meeting, Designating 

City Polling Locations 
B. Discuss Proposed Changes to Ward Boundaries 
C. Discuss Proposed 2022 Capital Budget Items Related to Elections 
 

Jamie Jackson, City Clerk, explained to the Council the timeline of the redistricting 
process and actions that will be needed at upcoming Council meetings. In conjunction 
with the redistricting process and the resulting ward boundary changes, the Clerk 
proposed a reduction of the total number of polling places in the City from 4 to 2, 
implementation of an electronic pollbook system (Badger Books), and an upgrade to 
the existing ballot tabulating machines. The two proposed polling locations are located 
at St. Peter the Fisherman Parish Center, 3201 Mishicot Rd., and Abundant Life 
Church, 1969 Roosevelt Ave., resulting in the elimination of polling locations presently 
used at City Hall, Grace Church, and the Community House. Following a presentation 

18



September 27, 2021 3 City Council Minutes 

detailing the process improvements for voters, poll workers, and Clerk's Office staff as 
well as the potential for ongoing cost savings, the Council unanimously expressed their 
interest in moving forward with proposed changes to polling places and election 
equipment upgrades and requested that the items be added to future Council agendas 
for formal action. 
 

6. Matters Related to Room Tax Commission 
A. Council President’s Designation of Another Council member to Serve in His Place 

on the City’s Room Tax Commission (Council Member Mark Bittner or Council 
Member Bill LeClair) 
Council President Wachowski designated Councilmember Bill LeClair to serve in 
his place on the City's Room Tax Commission. 

 
B. Appointment of a Citizen Member to the Room Tax Commission—City Manager 

Recommends Appointment of Former Council Member and Room Tax 
Commission Member Curt Andrews 

 

Recommended Action: 
Motion to approve the appointment of Curt Andrews to the Room Tax Commission, 
to a Term Ending May 1, 2022 
 

RESULT: APPROVED WITH VOICE VOTE [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Tracey Koach, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Darla LeClair, Councilmember 
AYES: Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Curt Andrews, Darla 

LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner 
NAYS: None 

 

7. Consider Proposed Donation by Private Party to Assist with Design Work for 
Reconstruction of Washington Park Tennis Courts to Create Pickleball Courts and a 
Tennis Court 

 
Recommended Action: 

 Council Discretion 
 

City Manager Buckley provided an overview of a memo provided by Parks & 
Recreation Director Terri Vosters regarding a donation by Gary Underwood of $4,500 
to fund consultation services in 2021 by Fred Kolkmann Tennis & Sport Surfaces, LLC 
for a tennis and pickleball court renovation at Washington Park in 2022. 

 
Recreation Supervisor, Ethan Jones, was present to discuss the increasing popularity 
of pickleball and the need for separate courts for both pickleball and tennis. 

 
Council expressed interest in including the acceptance of this donation on the October 
4th Council agenda with clarification of potential design questions and the feasibility of 
creating dual purpose courts. 
 

8. Consider Process for Reviewing and Evaluating Applicants to Fill City Council Vacancy 
(Applications Due October 15) 

 
Recommended Action: 

19



September 27, 2021 4 City Council Minutes 

 Council Discretion 
 

Council directed staff to create a matrix for use in comparing and evaluating applicants 
for the Council vacancy and present further information at the October 4th Council 
meeting. Selection process to begin on October 18th to review the matrix of applicants 
and select top candidates to be invited for a 3-minute presentation to the Council at the 
October 25th Work Session meeting with selection of the new Councilmember to follow. 

 
9. Consider Establishing Criteria for Attendance at City Council and Committee Meetings by 

City Council Members and Citizen Members (Agenda Item Requested by Council 
members Darla LeCLair and Tracey Koach 

 
Recommended Action: 

 Council Discretion 
 

Councilmembers Darla LeClair and Tracey Koach shared their concerns regarding the 
availability of some Council and Committee members and their lack of attendance at 
scheduled meetings. Discussion was held regarding a potential policy on attendance, but 
ultimately decided that if a Council or Committee member is unable to attend a scheduled 
meeting, they provide advance notice to the Council President, Committee Chairperson, 
and relevant City staff. 
 

10. Reminder of Joint Meeting With Central Park West 365 Design Committee: Thursday, 
September 30, 6:00 PM 
 
Mr. Buckley reminded Council of the joint meeting with the Central Park West 365 
Planning Committee on Thursday, September 30th at 6:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers at City Hall. 

 
Council President Wachowski and Councilmember Shimulunas indicated they would be 
unable to attend the meeting but would forward their comments on the project to the 
City Manager's office. 
 

11. Closed Executive Session  
 
Motion to enter into closed session at 7:48 pm, per Wisc. Stats.19.85(1)(e) deliberating or 
negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting 
other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reason require a 
closed session. 

• Discuss Possible Assistance to Downtown Redevelopment Project 

• Discuss Matters Pertaining to Sale/Redevelopment of the City-Owned Former 
Paragon Property, 606 Parkway Boulevard 

• Discuss Possible Property Acquisition 
 

RESULT: APPROVED WITH ROLL CALL[UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Tracey Koach, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Bonnie Shimulunas, Councilmember 
AYES: Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Curt Andrews, Darla 

LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner 
NAYS: None 

 

20



September 27, 2021 5 City Council Minutes 

12. Reconvene in Open Session To consider possible actions in follow-up to closed session 
discussions 

 
Motion to reconvene in open session at 9:20 pm to consider possible actions in follow-up 
to closed session discussions. 

 

RESULT: APPROVED WITH VOICE VOTE [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Jeff Dahlke, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Tracey Koach, Councilmember 
AYES: Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Curt Andrews, Darla 

LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner 
NAYS: None 

 
13. Adjournment 

 
Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the meeting and adjourn at 9:20 
pm. 

 

RESULT: APPROVED WITH VOICE VOTE [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Jay Remiker, Councilmember 
SECONDER: Darla LeClair, Councilmember 
AYES: Adam Wachowski, Bill LeClair, Bonnie Shimulunas, Curt Andrews, Darla 

LeClair, Jeff Dahlke, Jay Remiker, Tracey Koach, Mark Bittner 
NAYS: None 

 
 

Jamie Jackson 
City Clerk 

21



 
Committee Business: Member Updates
 
Call to Order  
 
Roll Call  Board Members: Donald DeBruyn, Brian Henrickson, Ben Meinnert, Gerald Thiede, Jay Orvis,
Jeff Dahlke; Council members – Darla LeClair; Staff – James McDonald (City Engineer/Public Works
Director), Scott Ahl (Civil Engineer II)
Absent:  Susan Crowley
Guests:  Katelyn Buchalski and Taryn Nall of Ruekert-Mielke
 
Review Last Minutes - 
 
Presentation by  
Katelyn Buchalski and Taryn Nall of Ruekert-Mielke to review MS4 (Municipal Separate Storm
Sewer System) TR Permit WI S050075-3 General Permit; renew in May 2024
 
MS4 summary:
2.1 Public Education - 6 topics/year
        - work with Mtwc Co Recycling Facility
2.2 Public Involvement - at least 1 activity/year
2.2 Illicit Discharge - inspect storm outfalls on rotating basis
2.4 Construction Site Pollution Control - prevent sediment from entering waters
2.5 Post Construction - Public and Private facilities
2.6 Pollution Prevention - inlet cleaning, street sweep, winter road management
        - also education of staff and board members
 
TMDL - amount of pollutant a stream can receive and support
       - Northeast Lakeshore TMDL = 1 of 2 under development
       - once TMDL approved, will be under Appendix C
           - within 36 months; updated map with watersheds
                - TMDL's with base level no control
           - within 48 months, need implementation plan with path to compliance
       - Water Quality tracking

ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY BOARD
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2021 – 5:30 PM 

3RD FLOOR COUNCIL CHAMBERS

MINUTES

1

22



           - cover crop, constructed wetland, stream bank stabilization
       - Adaptive Management
           - look at watershed approach; coordinate between public and private
Funding Options
    - Surface Water Grant - meet with DNR ____ ; submit Nov 1
    - Urban Non Point Grants - target runoff management
 
Rain Gardens
    - rain barrels - look at community match to encourage use by property owners
 
 
Goals and Objectives in queue include: 
Tree Committee:  trees being considered for 24th Street include Japanese Lilac, Callery Pear,
Amur Maple, Globe Norway Marble
 - city is proposing to select trees to ensure different varieties at appropriate spacing
 - city staff is coordinating with vendors to determine availability
 - noted:  residents need to contact Park & Rec Dept to plant &/or remove trees
 
look at red maple (Wisconsin)
 
Set Date, Time, and Agenda Items for next Board Meeting(s) 
Next meeting will be held Tuesday, October 19th at 5:30 pm
 
Adjournment
 

 Result: Approved by Voice Vote
Mover: Jeff Dahlke
Seconder: Gerald Thiede
Voting For: None
Voting Against: None

Motion to: Approve Motion was made by Jeff Dahlke, seconded by Jerry Thiede, to
adjourn at 7:05 pm

2

23



JOINT REVIEW BOARD
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 28, 2021 – 3:30 PM

CITY HALL - THIRD FLOOR COUNCIL CHAMBERS

MINUTES

1. Call to Order
The meeting was called to order by TID No. 16 Chairman John Lukas at 3:34 pm.

2. Roll Call Board Members: Mary Kay Slattery-Two Rivers Schools, John Lukas-Lakehore 
Technical College, J.J. Gutman-Manitowoc County, Don Karman-Citizen Member, Dave Buss-
City of Two Rivers

All Board Members were present with the exception of Don Karman.

Also present were: Elizabeth Runge, Community Development Director/Planner; and Vicky 
Berg, Zoning Administrator

3. Introduction of Joint Review Board Members, City Staff and Guests 
There were no new members or guests in attendance.

4. Review and discussion of proposed Project Plan and Boundaries for TID No. 16; Statutory 
findings necessary for approval of the Project Plan and Boundaries for TID No. 16
TID No. 16 is a blight elimination TID. The plan and district is targeting blight elimination and 
redevelopment on East River Street primarily at the former Eggers (East) Industries site. The 
purpose is blight elimination for a vacant site that has been idle since the demolition of the 
former manufacturing use. The City has been approached with plans for new construction of 
a market rate, multi-family project. The Developer has requested grant assistance. The 
assistance has been calculated in amount of  approximately $3,150,000.  The TIF grant terms 
and conditions will be identified and development agreement are subject to approval by the 
City Council.  The proposed project and assistance would not be possible without the creation 
of TID 16.  

5. Consideration of Resolution adopting the Project Plan and Boundaries for TID No. 16
Motion by J.J. Gutman, seconded by Mary Kay Slattery, to approve the resolution adopting the 
project plan and boundaries for TID No. 16. Motion carried unanimously upon a voice vote.

6. Other Business
There was no other business before the Joint Review Board.

7. Adjournment
Motion by Dave Buss, seconded by Don Karman, to adjourn the meeting at 3:45 pm. Motion carried 
unanimously upon a voice vote.

Jamie Jackson
City Clerk

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



City of Two Rivers

PROCLAMATION
WHEREAS, in 1990, the U.S. congress established the first full week of October as 

Mental Illness Awareness Week (MIAW) in recognition of National 
Alliance on Mental Illness’ (NAMI) efforts to raise mental illness 
awareness; and, 

WHEREAS, since 1990, mental health advocates across the country have joined 
together the first week of October to sponsor various activities to raise 
awareness through outreach, education, and advocacy; and

WHEREAS, MIAW is a time to raise public awareness of serious mental illnesses 
such as major depression, bipolar disorder, schizophrenia, post traumatic 
disorder, obsessive-compulsive disorder, and borderline personality 
disorder; and

WHEREAS, approximately 60 million Americans experience mental health problems 
in any given year, 1 in 17 lives with the most serious conditions and less 
than one-third seek treatment; and

WHEREAS, a half of all lifetime cases begin at the age of 14, however, 10 or more 
years may pass between the onset of symptoms and being diagnosed; 
and

WHEREAS, early diagnosis is often the key to recovery with treatment that may 
include combinations of medication, cognitive behavioral therapy, 
interpersonal therapy, peer support groups or community services, diet, 
sleep, exercise, and social support networks; and 

WHEREAS, education is essential in combating mental illness.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Two Rivers, in recognition of this event do hereby 
proclaim the week of October 4-11, 2021, as

MENTAL ILLNESS AWARENESS WEEK

In the City of Two Rivers and encourage the community to observe this week with 
appropriate programs, ceremonies, and activities.

Dated this 4th day of October, 2021.    

Adam Wachowski, City Council President

Gregory E. Buckley, City Manager

82



CITY OF TWO RIVERS
    RESOLUTION HONORING CURT ANDREWS

FOR HIS SERVICE ON THE CITY COUNCIL

WHEREAS, Curt Andrews served the Citizens of Two Rivers as a City Councilmember 
from his first election in April 2018 to September 10, 2021. He was elected by his fellow 
Council Members to serve as Council Vice President in April 2019; in February 2020 he 
assumed the position of Council President, following the death of Council President Patrick 
Gagnon; he was then elected Council President in April 2020 and again in April 2021; and

WHEREAS, during Curt’s tenure on the City Council, he served as a member of the 
Council’s Personnel and Finance Committee, Business and Industrial Development Committee, 
Community Development Authority, Room Tax Commission and Branding and Marketing 
Committee; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Andrews was instrumental in initiating and implementing the 2018 
Community Branding Project, aimed at helping attract talent, tourism, residents and investments 
to the community. Mr. Andrews’ mission was to create the framework to brand and market Two 
Rivers; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, on behalf of its members, City staff and the community at 
large, wishes to offer a collective “Thank You” to Curt Andrews for his devoted service to this 
community, which he so clearly loves and cares about; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Two 
Rivers hereby acknowledges Curt Andrews’ many contributions to this elected body and to our 
community, through his service as a Council member from April, 2018 to September 10, 2021; 
and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this Resolution be forwarded to Mr.
Andrews, in token of this Council’s appreciation, and the community’s appreciation, of his work 
for the betterment of the City of Two Rivers.

Approved this 4th day of October, 2021.

   

83



                              RESOLUTION  
Amending 2021 Budget for Tax Incremental District No. 8

To Provide Funding for Design Work Related to 
Reconstruction of Washington Park Tennis Courts as Tennis and Pickleball Courts

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to provide funds, in addition to those in the adopted 2021 Budget, to 
complete design work for the Washington Park tennis courts, in anticipation of reconstructing those courts in 2022.

WHEREAS, the City’s Parks and Recreation Director has obtained a quote of $4,500 for preparation of 
plans and specifications for this project; and

WHEREAS, a private party has offered to donate the $4,500 design cost in order to encourage the City to 
proceed with the reconstruction project and get the design work completed in 2021, in advance of City Council 
action on the 2022 Budget, where construction funding will be addressed; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the 2021 Budget for Tax Incremental District No. 8, 
within which the project is located and whose Project Plan allows for investments in park improvements, is hereby 
amended as follows:

2021 2021 Net Change

Current Amended As Result of

Fund/Account Budget Budget Amendment

Fund 237, Washington Highlands TID No. 8

Revenues

237-48500 Donations $                      0 $            4,500 $             4,500

Expenditures

237-56700-8130 Capital Outlay $             80,000 $          84,500 $           4,500 

Description: Adds $45,000 for 30 percent design 
for Central Park West 365 Project

Fund 237, Total Budgeted Expenditures $          176,103 $          180,603 $             4,500

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City agrees to accept the private donation of $4,500 
offered to assist this project, with the understanding that said donation will be refundable at the request of 
the donor in the event that the above-described reconstruction project is not budgeted for 2022 and a bid 
awarded by the City for construction in 2022; terms for the donation to be addressed in a letter of 
understanding between the City and the donor, to be signed by the City Manager and Parks and 
Recreation Director following review by the City Attorney.

Approved this 4th day of October, 2021.

______________________________
Council Member

________________________________
Gregory E. Buckley, City Manager

84



ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE to amend Municipal Code Section 2-1-2, entitled “Division of City into wards” to 
designate ward boundaries and polling locations

The Council of the City of Two Rivers does hereby ordain as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 2-1-2, Subsection (A), is hereby repealed and recreated to read as follows:

A. The City of Two Rivers shall be and hereby is divided into eight (8) wards, and two (2) 
or more wards shall be combined into one (1) common polling place that will use 
common ballot boxes, voting machines, and combined, not separate, returns must be 
maintained. 

SECTION 2. Section 2-1-2, Subsection (B), is hereby repealed and recreated to read as follows:

B. The two (2) or more City wards combined have been prepared in accordance with 
Wisconsin statutory requirements that will accommodate the Manitowoc County 
Supervisory District Plan, as follows based on the Map and Census Block Numbers 
provided by Manitowoc County, the descriptions for each Ward in the City shall be as 
follows:

(1) First Ward (Manitowoc County Supervisory District 22) contains a population 
of 845 and is bounded as follows: Part of Tract/BNA 51: 1001, 1003, 1006, 
1015, 1017-1018, 1020, 1032, 1035, 1038-1040, 1042-1043, 2014-2022, 
3002, 3005, 3009-3012, 3023-3024, 3029; Part of Tract/BNA 101: 1066

(2) Second Ward (Manitowoc County Supervisory District 22) contains a 
population of 1,057 and is bounded as follows: Part of Tract/BNA 51: 1011-
1014, 1022-1031, 1033-1034, 2000-2013; Part of Tract/BNA 52: 3000-3001, 
3017; Part of Tract/BNA 53: 1000, 3000

(3) Third Ward (Manitowoc County Supervisory District 23) contains a population 
of 1,529 and is bounded as follows: Part of Tract/BNA 52: 2000-2010, 2013, 
3005, 4001, 4003-4023

(4) Fourth Ward (Manitowoc County Supervisory District 23) contains a population 
of 1,590 and is bounded as follows: Part of Tract/BNA 52: 1001-1026, 1054-
1059, 2011-2012, 2014-2016, 3002-3004, 3006-3014; Part of Tract/BNA 54: 
1001

(5) Fifth Ward (Manitowoc County Supervisory District 24) contains a population 
of 1,581 and is bounded as follows: Part of Tract/BNA 52: 1031-1034, 3015-
3016, 3018-3019; Part of Tract/BNA 53: 1001-1019, 3001-3006, 3009-3010, 
3012-3013

The combined polling place for the First, Second, Third, Fourth, and Fifth Wards 
shall be located at St. Peter the Fisherman Parish Center, located at 3201 Mishicot 
Road.

85



(6) Sixth Ward (Manitowoc County Supervisory District 24) contains a population 
of 1,579 and is bounded as follows: Part of Tract/BNA 51: 3007, 3013-3017, 
3021-3022, 3025-3028, 3030-3034; Part of Tract/BNA 52: 1035-1043; Part of 
Tract/BNA 53: 2000-2016, 2020-2023, 2029, 3007-3008, 3011

(7) Seventh Ward (Manitowoc County Supervisory District 25) contains a 
population of 1,568 and is bounded as follows: Part of Tract/BNA 51: 3001, 
3003-3004, 3006, 3008, 3018-3020; Part of Tract/BNA 53: 2017-2019, 2024-
2028, 2030-2031; Part of Tract/BNA 54: 1008, 1018-1042, 1044-1045, 1047-
1048, 2014, 3000-3008, 3019-3021, 3023, 3027-3034, 4012-4024

(8) Eighth Ward (Manitowoc County Supervisory District 25) contains a population 
of 1,522 and is bounded as follows: Part of Tract/BNA 1: 2001-2002; Part of 
Tract/BNA 52: 1053; Part of Tract/BNA 54: 1003, 1005, 1007, 1010-1015, 
2000-2013, 3009-3018, 3022, 3024-3026, 4000-4011; Part of Tract/BNA 101: 
3032

The combined polling place for the Sixth, Seventh, and Eighth Wards shall be 
located at Abundant Life Church, located at 1969 Roosevelt Avenue.

SECTION 3. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its date of passage 
and publication.

Dated this 18th day of October, 2021.

________________________________
Adam Wachowski

President, City Council

________________________________
Gregory E. Buckley

City Manager
Attest:

________________________________
Jamie Jackson
City Clerk

Approved as to form and legality:

_________________________________
John M. Bruce
City Attorney

86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



Two Rivers Energy Management Achieves Savings
January 2019

General:

The resolution implementing Municipal-Wide Energy Management Policy passed in December 
2017 set a 2% energy reduction goal within 2 years. Recent lighting projects are saving the city 
money with more projects in the works. These LED lighting projects provide energy reduction, 
reduced maintenance, and in many cases improved lighting levels. Overall these projects will
save the city over $9000 and 120,000 kWh annually, exceeding the energy goal set in 2017!

Individual departments provided the installation labor and TRWL managed the project scoping, 
specifying, purchasing and incentive applications. The project costs are about $11,000 after 
Focus on Energy and Two Rivers Water and Light incentives, providing an overall 1.3 year
Rate of Return (ROI).

Way to go TRWL and City Departments! Shine on!

Details

Location Total Cost $ Savings kWh Savings ROI

Electric Office $2,000 $840 12,000 2

Water Filter Plant $1,900 $940 12,500 2

City Hall $2,800 $2,400 34,000 1

Library $0 $400 5,000 NA

Hamilton House $2,500 $2,600 37,000 1

Fire Station $1,900 $1,600 22,400 1

City LED Cost $4,400 $3,500 59,300 1

TOTAL $15,500 $12,280 128,830 1.3

94



Technical guidance and expert support services are available:
•	 Energy benchmarking
•	 Facility energy assessments
•	 Construction plan review
•	 Equipment efficiency comparison
•	 Energy cost saving estimates
•	 Load monitoring
•	 Energy awareness training

leading by example 

How to get started
For more information, contact your  

Energy Services Representative today.

Greg Skurupey 

gskurupey@wppienergy.org

PROJECT ELIGIBILITY 

• Enhanced efficiency improvement incentives for 
electrical energy saving retrofits and upgrades and grants 
for building commissioning services

• Members will receive additional enhanced efficiency 
improvement incentives with a formal resolution and 
measurable performance goal for electrical energy 
reductions in municipal facilities by the local 
government.

• Eligible facilities include office buildings, garages, city 
and village halls, libraries, police and fire stations, water/
wastewater and other public works facilities, and public 
lighting equipment such as street lighting and traffic 
signals. Must be a utility or municipally-owned facility.

• Water and wastewater facility assessment services

• Eligible facilities include water & wastewater treatment 
facilities only. Must be a utility or municipally-owned 
facility.

At Two Rivers Water & Light, we join forces with other local not-for-profit 
utilities through WPPI Energy to share resources and lower costs.

trwaterandlight.com      (920) 793-5550

Two Rivers Water & Light_UMBI_BillInsert_F

Take the lead in energy efficiency. Because of their high visibility in the community, municipally-

owned facilities are excellent applications for leading by example in the efficient use of energy. With help from our 

power supplier, WPPI Energy, we can offer financial assistance to overcome the initial costs associated with 

implementing energy saving measures, and make efficiency improvements a cost-effective investment for our 

community. 

95



                       

RESOLUTION IMPLEMENTING MUNICIPAL-WIDE ENERGY MANAGEMENT POLICY

     WHEREAS, the City of Two Rivers, Wisconsin, in partnership with its municipal utility, Two 
Rivers Water & Light, is committed to being an environmentally responsible community, 
dedicated to improving global and local quality of life through active environmental stewardship; 
and

     WHEREAS, it is more cost-effective to use less electricity and natural gas than it is to 
generate and/or purchase electricity and natural gas for the operation of City of Two Rivers and 
Two Rivers Water & Light facilities; and

     WHEREAS, Two Rivers Water & Light and WPPI Energy have developed and implemented 
mutually beneficial energy efficiency, conservation and renewable energy programs, projects 
and educational activities designed to increase community energy efficiency, promote clean air 
and water and reduce waste; and

     WHEREAS, Two Rivers Water & Light already promotes these initiatives through its 
Commitment to Community programs and partnership with WPPI Energy and Focus on Energy; 
and

    WHEREAS, implementing a municipal-wide energy management policy will require that the 
City of Two Rivers and Two Rivers Water & Light make a commitment to financial and human 
resources toward initiatives that save energy and money for the long-term; 

    NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Two Rivers and Two Rivers Water 
& Light hereby set a goal to curb use of electricity, natural gas and water in municipal facilities 
by 2% from levels measured in 2020, within 2 years of the date of resolution; and

    BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Two Rivers and Two Rivers Water & Light will 
demonstrate the effectiveness of energy efficiency, conservation and renewable resource 
development and further see to instill a strong conversation ethic within the community that will 
help establish the City of Two Rivers as a leader in these areas.

Approved this 4th day of October, 2021.
                                   

_____________________________
Councilmember

_____________________________
Gregory E. Buckley
City Manager

96



1717 E. Park Street 
P.O. BOX 87 

Two Rivers, WI 54241-0087 
 

  www.two-rivers.org              920.793.5564                920.793.5512 

Report To:  City Council   

From:  Elizabeth Runge, Community Development Director/Planner  
 

Re:   Approval to award a contract for the design of the Community 
Development Block Grant- COVID (CDBG-CV) funded Senior Center 
Improvements   

 
Background 
The City was awarded a CDBG-CV Grant in the amount of $88,000 for modifications to 
the Two Rivers Senior Center to improve and expand access as a result of COVID 19.  
The improvements include:  
 

 Install a sliding glass window / new drive-up window 
 Install a second new door entry next to drive up window 
 Replace existing entry door with a new larger automatic door with sensor for 

contactless opening 
 Adding an awning over the drive-up window and and new door 
 Restripe the parking lot to adjust travel pattern for use with the new drive up 

window 
 Install curb cuts for a new outlet from parking lot onto Adams Street  

 
 
A Request for Qualifications (RFQ) was issued on July 29, 2021 with a deadline of  
August 20, 2021 for the above listed improvements.  The City received one response to 
from SMI Civil and Structural Engineering.  SMI provided the information requested in 
the City's RFQ, is a local provider and has direct knowledge of the Senior Center 
Project.  As a result of these factors, we are recommending that the design contract be 
awarded to SMI, Inc.  
 
Recommended Action: Approval to award the contract for the design of the Senior 
Center and parking lot improvements for the CDBG- COVID in the amount of $10,000. 
 
 
 
 

97

http://www.two-rivers.org/


98



99



100



                       
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF ELECTION EQUIPMENT UPGRADES

AND DECLARING OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE SUCH EXPENDITURES FROM THE 
PROCEEDS OF 2022 CAPITAL PROJECTS BORROWING

WHEREAS, the City of Two Rivers administers elections for its voting population; and

WHEREAS, the City’s current ballot tabulating machines are approaching the end of 
their useful life and in need of replacement; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk has identified an opportunity for an improved voter, poll 
worker, and City staff experience by implementing an electronic poll book system (Badger 
Books); and

WHEREAS, implementing the electronic poll book system allows the City to decrease 
the total number of polling places needed, also decreasing the number of new ballot tabulating 
machines needed; and 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk has received a quote of $16,280.00 for replacement of the 
ballot tabulating machines and $20,310.00 for the purchase of the electronic poll book system;
and

WHEREAS, the City Council intends to budget for these capital expenditures in the 2022
Capital Budget, to be paid from proceeds of borrowing, but wishes to proceed immediately to 
order such election equipment, in order that it might be available in time for use in the April 2022 
election; and 

WHEREAS, some or all expenditures related to the acquisition of this equipment may
occur prior to the closing on the City’s 2022 capital projects borrowing, and in such event will be 
funded on an interim basis from internal funds of the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

Section 1 Authorization to Purchase.  The City Council does hereby authorize the 
purchase of new ballot tabulating machines and an electronic poll book system at a total cost 
not to exceed $36,590.00; and

Section 2. Declaration of Official Intent. The City hereby officially declares its intent to 
reimburse said expenditures with proceeds of tax-exempt, general obligation borrowing, the 
principal amount of which will not exceed $36,590.00; and

Section 3. Anticipated Timing of Borrowings.  The City anticipates closing on the 
borrowing for the equipment purchase cited above prior to July 31, 2022, and

Section 4. Unavailability of Long Term Funds. No other funds for said activities, 
other than the planned borrowing referenced herein are, or are reasonably expected to 
be, reserved, allocated on a long-term basis, or otherwise set aside by the City pursuant 
to its budget or financial policies; and 

101



Section 5. Public Availability of Official Intent Resolution. This Resolution shall be 
made available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office within 30 days after its 
approval in compliance with applicable State law governing the availability of records of 
official acts including Subchapter II of Chapter 19, and shall remain available for public 
inspection until the Notes or Bonds are issued; and 

Section 5. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption and 
approval.

.

Dated this 4th day of October, 2021.                                   

_____________________________
Councilmember

_____________________________
Gregory E. Buckley
City Manager

102



 103



 

 

 

 

BREAKFAST BUFFET INCLUDES: plain and loaded scrambled eggs, ham, sausage 

links, pancakes, flavored French toast, fried potatoes, popcorn chicken, fresh fruit 

cups, apple juice, orange juice, coffee, water, chocolate milk, white milk. 

  

BREAKFAST IN THE PARK! 
in support of the 

   TWO RIVERS POLICE K-9 PROGRAM 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JOIN US for breakfast in the Point Beach Main Lodge 

where a buffet breakfast with beverage will be served. 
Park entrance from 8am-1pm included with breakfast ticket purchase  

to allow time to explore the Park after breakfast. 

A basket raffle will also be available for purchase. 

 

 

Officers of the TRPD will be 

present to share about this 

exciting new program!   

PROCEEDS WILL BE 

DONATED TO THE TRPD 

K9 PROGRAM. 

  
 

SATURDAY, OCTOBER 16th, 2021 
8:00AM – 12:00PM 

Point Beach State Park Main Lodge 
$9.00 in advance** / $10.00 day of event 

($5.00 for children under 10) 
 

** Tickets available in advance at:  
Point Beach State Park Registration Building 

Point Beach State Park Concession Stand 
Domnitz Flowers 1714-11th St  TR 

SPONSORED BY: 
POINT BEACH CONCESSIONS 

104

https://pbs.twimg.com/profile_images/1632602334/DNRc2_250_twitter_3_400x400.jpg


Electronics 
Drive

Saturday October 16, 2021

9:00AM – 1:00PM
J. E. Hamilton Community House Parking Lot 

(enter on 18th Street)

Items accepted for NO fee

Computers, Printers, Ink Cartridges, Laptops, Microwaves, & 
most other items

Items accepted for a fee
Televisions   $15.00 / $30.00 Monitors $10.00

Freezers $10.00 Freon Items $5.00

Items NOT Accepted
Light Bulbs, Batteries, Paints, Solvents, Medications

Call 920-794-4787

Sponsored by the Two Rivers High School Octagon Club 

105


	City Council Regular Agenda
	-106 - CDI Resolution Oct 4 2021 FINAL.docx
	-106 - 09.20.21 cc min final.docx
	-106 - 09.27.21 cc min FINAL.pdf
	-115 - EAB min 09-21-21.pdf
	-115 - 2021.09.28 JRB Minutes final.docx
	-115 - Pers & Finance min 9-29-21.pdf
	-115 - August 2021 Debt Service Fund Summary Financial Report.pdf
	-115 - August 2021 General Fund Summary Financial Report.pdf
	-115 - August 2021 Lester Public Library Detail Financial Report.pdf
	-115 - August 2021 Utilities Financial Report.pdf
	-142 - 2021- Proc Mental Illness Awareness Week.docx
	-191 - Andrews Council Retirement Res 10.04.2021.doc
	-204 - Budget Amendment, Washington Park Tennis Court Design 10.04.2021.docx
	-194 - 2021- Ord Division of City into Wards.docx
	-205 - Vacancy City Council.pdf
	-207 - Two Rivers energy savings.docx
	-207 - TR UMB.pdf
	-207 - 2021-  Res Energy Management Policy.doc
	-208 - Memo Re CDBG CV Request to Approve SMI Oct 2021.pdf
	-210 - 2021- Res Intent to Reimburse-Election Equipment Upgrades.doc
	-210 - Ward Map.pdf
	-210 - BREAKFAST IN THE PARK 2021.pdf
	-210 - Electronic Drive.pdf

